Contents

| General Considerations | 3 |
|---|----|
| Output Measures | 4 |
| Mental Health Served | 4 |
| Adult Mental Health – distinct count of persons with a service event record for mental health occurring services. | |
| Children Mental Health – distinct count of persons with a service event record for mental co-occurring services. | |
| Substance Abuse Served | 4 |
| Adult Substance Abuse – distinct count of persons with a service event record for substance co-occurring services. | |
| Children Substance Abuse – distinct count of persons with a service event record for substor co-occurring services. | |
| Performance Outcome Measures | 5 |
| Employment | 5 |
| Adults Employed within 30 days Prior to Discharge | 5 |
| Measure Example - Adults Employed within 30 days Prior to Discharge | 5 |
| Education | 7 |
| Children attending School within 90 days Prior to Discharge | 7 |
| Measure Example - Children attending School within 90 days Prior to Discharge | 7 |
| Stability of Housing | 9 |
| Persons in a Stable Living Situation within 30 Days Prior to Discharge | 9 |
| Measure Example - Persons in a Stable Living Situation within 30 Days Prior to Discharge | 10 |
| Criminal Justice Involvement | 11 |
| Persons without Arrests within 30 Days Prior to Discharge | 11 |
| Measure Example - Persons without Arrests within 30 Days Prior to Discharge | 11 |
| Social Support of Recovery | 13 |
| Persons Attending Self-Help Programs at Discharge | 13 |
| Measure Example - Persons Attending Self-Help Programs at Discharge | 14 |
| Successful Completion of Treatment | 15 |
| Persons Discharge as Successfully Completing Treatment | 15 |
| Measure Example - Persons Discharge as Successfully Completing Treatment | 16 |
| State Hospital Readmissions | 18 |

| Criteria for Admissions and Discharges | 18 |
|--|----|
| Persons Admitted to a Civil State Mental Health Facility within 180 Days of Discharge | 18 |
| Persons Admitted to a Forensic State Mental Health Facility within 180 Days of Discharge | 20 |
| Measure Example – State Hospital Readmissions within 180 Days | 21 |

General Considerations

Performance outcomes are intended to be calculated for all persons served that meet the inclusion criteria for each measure. This means that an individual served must have received a service in a specified treatment setting (e.g., 1100.06 - Ambulatory – Intensive outpatient), under a subcontract that includes the particular measure (e.g., Adults Employed within 30 days Prior to Discharge). Presently the first part of the criteria can be evaluated as all treatment services have an identified treatment setting. The second criteria of limiting the measurement to specific subcontracts is not part of this document as the business rules of associating services to subcontracts are undergoing substantive changes to account for Project Codes and other situations that vary from the standard service delivery model described in 65E-14.021 Schedule of Covered Services.

Submitting Entities are strongly encouraged to conduct quality review of their provider submitted data prior to submitting data into the Financial And Services Accountability Management System (FASAMS). The quality reviews should help identify situations where there are low data set sizes which can affect performance. For example, if 100 persons are discharged from an ME system of care there may be only 50 persons that meet the inclusion criteria for a particular measure (e.g., employment measures do not include persons in institutional care). Identifying how the data funnels down from a full cohort to a smaller data set may be vital to explaining performance variations.

Output Measures

Mental Health Served

Adult Mental Health – distinct count of persons with a service event record for mental health or co-occurring services.

- Program Area in
 - o 1000.1 Adult Mental Health
 - o 1000.5 Adult Substance Abuse and Mental Health (For Co-Occurring)

Children Mental Health – distinct count of persons with a service event record for mental health or co-occurring services.

- Program Area in
 - o 1000.3 Child Mental Health
 - o 1000.6 Child Substance Abuse and Mental Health (For Co-Occurring)

Substance Abuse Served

Adult Substance Abuse – distinct count of persons with a service event record for substance use or co-occurring services.

- Program Area in
 - o 1000.2 Adult Substance Abuse
 - o 1000.5 Adult Substance Abuse and Mental Health (For Co-Occurring)

Children Substance Abuse – distinct count of persons with a service event record for substance use or co-occurring services.

- Program Area in
 - o 1000.4 Child Substance Abuse
 - o 1000.6 Adult Substance Abuse and Mental Health (For Co-Occurring)

Performance Outcome Measures

Employment

Adults Employed within 30 days Prior to Discharge

- This measure applies to Adult Mental Health and Adult Substance Abuse and WILL BE reported at those levels.
- Received services in any of the following Treatment Settings
 - o 1100.04 Rehabilitation/Residential -Short term (30 days or fewer)
 - o 1100.05 Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days)
 - o 1100.06 Ambulatory Intensive outpatient
 - o 1100.07 Ambulatory Non-Intensive outpatient
- Exclude Individuals where employment status at discharge is any of the following:
 - o 2900.31 Unpaid Family Worker
 - o 2900.50 Leave of Absence
 - o 2900.60 Retired
 - o 2900.84 Incarcerated
 - o 2900.86 Not Authorized to work
 - o 2900.83 Disabled
 - o 2900.97 Unknown
- Exclude Individuals where Reason for Discharge is any of the following:
 - o 5600.6 Death
 - o 5600.5 Incarcerated or released by courts
- Calculation for Performance Measure
 - Numerator (Employed at discharge) distinct count of persons served where the employment status at discharge is any of the following:
 - 2900.10 Active military, overseas
 - 2900.20 Active military, USA
 - 2900.30 Full Time
 - 2900.40 Part Time
 - Denominator distinct count of persons served where employment status at discharge is any of the following:
 - 2900.10 Active military, overseas
 - 2900.20 Active military, USA
 - 2900.30 Full Time
 - 2900.81 Homemaker
 - 2900.40 Part Time
 - 2900.82 Student
 - 2900.70 Unemployed
 - Numerator (Employed at Discharge) / Denominator (In Labor Force) * 100

Measure Example - Adults Employed within 30 days Prior to Discharge

| | | | | | | Initial Admission | Final Discharge |
|----|------------|-------------------|-----------|--------------------------------|----------------------|-------------------|-----------------|
| | | | Final | | Program Area Display | Employment | Employment |
| ME | Identifier | Initial Admission | Discharge | Treatment Setting at Admission | Name | Status | Status |

| ME1 | A1 | 7/30/2018 | 9/9/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | Part Time | Disabled |
|-----|----|------------|------------|--|-----------------------|------------|------------|
| ME1 | A2 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | Full Time | Full Time |
| ME1 | A3 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Unemployed | Part Time |
| ME2 | A4 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | Full Time | Full Time |
| ME2 | A5 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Unemployed | Unemployed |
| ME2 | A6 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Disabled | Disabled |

In the above data set there are six records, four of which apply. A1 and A6 would not apply because employment status at discharge must be in the labor force.

Individuals who are employment at discharge are assigned a score of 1; Individuals who were not employed at discharge are assigned a score of zero (0); Individuals that are not in the labor force at discharge are not included in the measure.

The following shows what the performance would look like using the above-mentioned data set and information.

| ME | Identifier | Final Discharge Employment Status | Included in Measure | SCORE |
|-----|------------|---|------------------------|-------|
| ME1 | A1 | Disabled | N | |
| ME1 | A2 | Full Time | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A3 | Part Time | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A4 | Full Time | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A5 | Unemployed | Υ | 0 |
| ME2 | A6 | Disabled | N | |

Totals - Within the ME and State

| Location | Data Set Size | Performance |
|----------|------------------|-------------|
| ME1 | 2 | 100% |
| ME2 | 2 | 50% |
| STATE | 4 | 75% |

Education

Children attending School within 90 days Prior to Discharge

- This measure applies to Children's Mental Health and Children's Substance Abuse and WILL BE reported at those levels.
- Received services in any of the following Treatment Settings
 - 1100.04 Rehabilitation/Residential -Short term (30 days or fewer)
 - o 1100.05 Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days)
 - o 1100.06 Ambulatory Intensive outpatient
 - o 1100.07 Ambulatory Non-Intensive outpatient
- Exclude Individuals where School Attendance Status at Admission or Discharge is one of the following:
 - o 7700.3 Unknown
 - o 7700.6 Not Applicable
- Exclude Individuals where Reason for Discharge is one of the following:
 - o 5600.6 Death
 - 5600.5 Incarcerated or released by courts
- Calculation
 - Numerator (Student at discharge) Distinct count of persons where School Attendance
 Status at discharge = 7700.1 Yes
 - Denominator distinct count of persons served where School Attendance status at discharge is any of the following:
 - 7700.0 No
 - 7700.1 Yes
 - Numerator (Employed at Discharge) / Denominator (School Attendance Status Known) *
 100

Measure Example - Children attending School within 90 days Prior to Discharge

| ME | Identifier | Initial Admission | Final Discharge | Treatment Setting at Admission | Program Area Display Name | Initial Admission School Attendance Status | Final Discharge School Attendance Status |
|-----|------------|-------------------|--------------------|--|----------------------------|--|---|
| ME1 | A1 | 7/30/2018 | 9/9/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Children's Mental Health | Yes | Yes |
| ME1 | A2 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Children's Mental Health | Yes | Yes |
| ME1 | A3 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Children's Substance Abuse | Unknown | Yes |
| ME2 | A4 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Children's Mental Health | No | Yes |
| ME2 | A5 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Children's Substance Abuse | Yes | Unknown |
| ME2 | A6 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Children's Substance Abuse | Yes | No |

In the above data set there are six records, five of which apply. A5 would not apply because school attendance status at discharge must be known.

Individuals who are attending School at discharge are assigned a score of 1; Individuals who were not attending school at discharge are assigned a score of zero (0); Individuals whose attendance status is unknown at discharge are not included in the measure.

The following shows what the performance would look like using the above-mentioned data set and information.

| ME | Identifier | Final Discharge School Attendance Status | Included in Measure | SCORE |
|-----|------------|---|------------------------|-------|
| ME1 | A1 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A2 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A3 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A4 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A5 | Unknown | N | |
| ME2 | A6 | No | Υ | 0 |

Totals - Within the ME and State

| Location | Data Set Size | Performance |
|----------|------------------|-------------|
| ME1 | 3 | 100% |
| ME2 | 2 | 50% |
| STATE | 5 | 80% |

Stability of Housing

Persons in a Stable Living Situation within 30 Days Prior to Discharge

- This measure applies to Adult Substance Abuse, Adult Mental Health, Children's Mental Health and Children's Substance Abuse and WILL BE reported at those levels.
- Received any of the following Treatment Settings
 - o 1100.04 Rehabilitation/Residential -Short term (30 days or fewer)
 - o 1100.05 Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days)
 - o 1100.06 Ambulatory Intensive outpatient
 - o 1100.07 Ambulatory Non-Intensive outpatient
- Exclude Individuals where Reason for Discharge in
 - o 5600.6 Death
 - 5600.5 Incarcerated or released by courts
- Exclude Individuals where Living Arrangement at Discharge in
 - o 3000.99 Not Available or Unknown
- Calculation
 - Numerator (Stable housing at discharge) distinct count of persons served where Living
 Arrangement at discharge is one of the following:
 - 3000.04 Dependent Living with Relatives
 - 3000.05 Dependent Living with Non-Relatives
 - 3000.08 Adult Residential Treatment Facility (Group Home)
 - 3000.16 Children Residential Treatment Facility
 - 3000.06 Assisted Living Facility (ALF)
 - 3000.17 Limited Mental Health Licensed ALF
 - 3000.01 Independent Living Alone
 - 3000.02 Independent Living with Relatives
 - 3000.03 Independent Living with Non-Relatives
 - Denominator distinct count of persons served where Living Arrangement at discharge is
 - 3000.08 Adult Residential Treatment Facility (Group Home)
 - 3000.06 Assisted Living Facility (ALF)
 - 3000.16 Children Residential Treatment Facility
 - 3000.13 Correctional Facility
 - 3000.15 Crisis Residence
 - 3000.05 Dependent Living with Non-Relatives
 - 3000.04 Dependent Living with Relatives
 - 3000.14 DJJ Facility
 - 3000.07 Foster Care/Home
 - 3000.09 Homeless
 - 3000.01 Independent Living Alone
 - 3000.03 Independent Living with Non-Relatives
 - 3000.02 Independent Living with Relatives
 - 3000.17 Limited Mental Health Licensed ALF
 - 3000.11 Nursing Home
 - 3000.18 Other Residential Status
 - 3000.10 State Mental Health Treatment Facility (State Hospital)
 - 3000.12 Supported Housing

Measure Example - Persons in a Stable Living Situation within 30 Days Prior to Discharge

| ME | Identifier | Initial Admission | Final Discharge | Treatment Setting at Admission | Program Area Display Name | Initial Admission Living Arrangement | Final Discharge Living Arrangement |
|-----|------------|----------------------|--------------------|---|------------------------------|--|--|
| ME1 | A1 | 7/30/2018 | 9/9/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Children's Mental Health | Dependent Living – with Relatives | Not Available or Unknown |
| ME1 | A2 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | Independent Living – with Non-Relatives | Independent Living – with Non-Relatives |
| ME1 | A3 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Children's Substance Abuse | Dependent Living – with Relatives | Dependent Living – with Relatives |
| ME2 | A4 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Substance Abuse | Independent Living – with Non-Relatives | Independent Living – with Non-Relatives |
| ME2 | A5 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Homeless | Homeless |
| ME2 | A6 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Not Available or Unknown | Homeless |

In the above data set there are six records, five of which apply. A1 would not apply because living arrangement at discharge must be known.

Individuals who are stably housed at discharge are assigned a score of 1; Individuals who are not stably housed at discharge are assigned a score of zero (0); Individuals whose housing situation is unknown at discharge are not included in the measure.

The following shows what the performance would look like using the above-mentioned data set and information.

| ME | Identifier | Final Discharge Stable Housing | Included in Measure | SCORE |
|-----|------------|-----------------------------------|------------------------|-------|
| ME1 | A1 | Unknown | N | - |
| ME1 | A2 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A3 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A4 | Yes | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A5 | No | Υ | 0 |
| ME2 | A6 | No | Υ | 0 |

Totals - Within the ME and State

| Location | Data Set Size | Performance |
|----------|------------------|-------------|
| ME1 | 2 | 100% |
| ME2 | 3 | 33% |
| STATE | 5 | 60% |

Criminal Justice Involvement

Persons without Arrests within 30 Days Prior to Discharge

- This measure applies to Adult Substance Abuse, Adult Mental Health, Children's Mental Health and Children's Substance Abuse and WILL BE reported at those levels.
- Received any of the following Treatment Settings
 - o 1100.04 Rehabilitation/Residential -Short term (30 days or fewer)
 - o 1100.05 Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days)
 - o 1100.06 Ambulatory Intensive outpatient
 - o 1100.07 Ambulatory Non-Intensive outpatient
- Exclude Individuals where Reason for Discharge in
 - o 5600.6 Death
- Exclude Individuals where Arrests in Last 30 days prior to discharge is unknown
- Calculation
 - o Numerator (No arrests at discharge) distinct count of persons served where
 - Number of Arrests in last 30 days at discharge = 0
 - Denominator distinct count of persons served where Number of Arrests in last 30 days at discharge is not missing

Measure Example - Persons without Arrests within 30 Days Prior to Discharge

| ME | Identifier | Initial Admission | Final Discharge | Treatment Setting at Admission | Program Area Display Name | Initial Admission Arrests within 30 Days | Final Discharge Arrests within 30 Days |
|-----|------------|----------------------|--------------------|---|------------------------------|--|--|
| ME1 | A1 | 7/30/2018 | 9/9/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Children's Mental Health | | 1 |
| ME1 | A2 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | 1 | 0 |
| ME1 | A3 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Children's Substance Abuse | 1 | |
| ME2 | A4 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non-Intensive outpatient | Adult Substance Abuse | 2 | 0 |
| ME2 | A5 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | 1 | 0 |
| ME2 | A6 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | 4 | 2 |

In the above data set there are six records, five of which apply. A3 would not apply because the number of arrests at discharge is unknown.

Individuals who are not arrested at discharge are assigned a score of 1; Individuals who are arrested at discharge are assigned a score of zero (0); Individuals whose number of arrests at discharge is unknown are not included in the measure.

The following shows what the performance would look like using the above-mentioned data set and information.

| ME | Identifier | Final Discharge Arrests Within 30 Days | Included in Measure | SCORE |
|-----|------------|--|------------------------|-------|
| ME1 | A1 | 1 | Υ | 0 |
| ME1 | A2 | 0 | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A3 | | N | |
| ME2 | A4 | 0 | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A5 | 0 | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A6 | 2 | Υ | 0 |

Totals - Within the ME and State

| Location | Data Set Size | Performance |
|----------|------------------|-------------|
| ME1 | 2 | 50% |
| ME2 | 3 | 67% |
| STATE | 5 | 60% |

Social Support of Recovery

Persons Attending Self-Help Programs at Discharge

- This measure applies to Adult Substance Abuse and Adult Mental Health and WILL BE reported at those levels.
- Received any of the following Treatment Settings
 - o 1100.04 Rehabilitation/Residential -Short term (30 days or fewer)
 - o 1100.05 Rehabilitation/Residential -Long term (more than 30 days)
 - o 1100.06 Ambulatory Intensive outpatient
 - o 1100.07 Ambulatory Non-Intensive outpatient
- Exclude Individuals where Reason for Discharge in
 - o 5600.6 Death
- Exclude Individuals where Self-Help Group Attendance frequency at discharge = 3100.97 -Unknown
- Calculation
 - Numerator (Attendance at SU Self-Help Groups at discharge) distinct count of persons where Self-Help Group Attendance Frequency is one of the following:
 - 3100.2 Less than once a week
 - 3100.3 About once a week
 - 2100.4 2 to 3 times per week
 - 3100.5 At least 4 times a week
 - 3100.6 Some Attendance
 - Denominator distinct count of persons served Self Help Group Attendance frequency at discharge is
 - 3100.4 2 to 3 times per week
 - 3100.3 About once a week
 - 3100.5 At least 4 times a week
 - 3100.2 Less than once a week
 - 3100.1 No attendance
 - 3100.6 Some attendance

Measure Example - Persons Attending Self-Help Programs at Discharge

| ME | Identifier | Initial Admission | Final Discharge | Treatment Setting at Admission | Program Area Display Name | Initial Admission Self Help Group Attendance Frequency | Final Discharge Self Help Group Attendance Frequency |
|-----|------------|----------------------|--------------------|--|------------------------------|---|---|
| ME1 | A1 | 7/30/2018 | 9/9/2018 | Ambulatory – Non- Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | No Attendance | Some Attendance |
| ME1 | A2 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non- Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | Less than Once a week | About once a week |
| ME1 | A3 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential - Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | No Attendance | 2 to 3 times per week |
| ME2 | A4 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Ambulatory – Non- Intensive outpatient | Adult Substance Abuse | About once a week | 2 to 3 times per week |
| ME2 | A5 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential - Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | About once a week | 2 to 3 times per week |
| ME2 | A6 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | Rehabilitation/Residential - Long term (more than 30 days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Less than Once a week | At least 4 times a week |

In the above data set there are six records, all of which apply.

Individuals who are attending self-help at discharge are assigned a score of 1; Individuals who are not attending self-help at discharge are assigned a score of zero (0); Individuals whose self-help attendance at discharge is unknown are not included in the measure.

The following shows what the performance would look like using the above-mentioned data set and information.

| ME | Identifier | Final Discharge Self Help Group Attendance Frequency | Included in Measure | SCORE |
|-----|------------|---|------------------------|-------|
| ME1 | A1 | Some Attendance | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A2 | About once a week | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A3 | 2 to 3 times per week | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A4 | 2 to 3 times per week | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A5 | 2 to 3 times per week | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A6 | At least 4 times a week | Υ | 1 |

Totals - Within the ME and State

| Location | Data Set Size | Performance |
|----------|------------------|-------------|
| ME1 | 3 | 100% |
| ME2 | 3 | 100% |
| STATE | 6 | 100% |

Successful Completion of Treatment

Persons Discharge as Successfully Completing Treatment

- Received a treatment or therapeutic service
- Exclude Individuals where Reason for Discharge in
 - o 5600.6 Death
 - 5600.7 Other (includes aging out of the children's MH system, extended placement (conditional release), immediate discharge, and all other reasons)
 - o 5600.96 Not Applicable
 - o 5600.97 Unknown
- Discharge Type is 5500.2 Final Discharge from Provider
- Calculation
 - o Numerator(Reason at Discharge) distinct count of persons where Discharge reason is
 - 5600.1 Successfully completed Treatment
 - 5600.24 Successfully completed Transfer to another treatment program or facility that is not in the SSA or SMHA reporting system
 - 5600.4 Successfully completed Transfer to another treatment program or facility
 - Denominator distinct count of persons where discharge reason is:
 - 5600.34 Discharged temporarily to an acute medical facility for medical services (MH only)
 - 5600.2 Dropped out of treatment (lost contact, administrative discharge, left against medical advice, eloped, failed to return from leave, and individual choice)
 - 5600.5 Incarcerated or released by or to courts
 - 5600.4 Successfully completed Transfer to another treatment program or facility
 - 5600.2 4Successfully completed Transfer to another treatment program or facility that is not in the SSA or SMHA reporting system
 - 5600.1 Successfully completed Treatment
 - 5600.3 Terminated by facility
 - 5600.14 Transferred to another treatment program or facility but individual is no show or transfer not successfully completed

Measure Example - Persons Discharge as Successfully Completing Treatment

| | | Initial | Final | Treatment Setting at | Program Area Display | |
|-----|------------|------------|------------|------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|
| ME | Identifier | Admission | Discharge | Admission | Name | Final Discharge Reason |
| | | | | Ambulatory – Non- | | Successfully completed |
| ME1 | A1 | 7/30/2018 | 9/9/2018 | Intensive outpatient | Children's Mental Health | Treatment |
| | | | | Ambulatory – Non- | | Successfully completed |
| ME1 | A2 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Intensive outpatient | Adult Mental Health | Treatment |
| | | | | Rehabilitation/Residential - | | |
| | | | | Long term (more than 30 | Children's Substance | |
| ME1 | A3 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | days) | Abuse | Dropped out of Treatment |
| | | | | Ambulatory – Non- | | Successfully completed |
| ME2 | A4 | 10/22/2018 | 10/28/2018 | Intensive outpatient | Adult Substance Abuse | Treatment |
| | | | | Rehabilitation/Residential - | | |
| | | | | Long term (more than 30 | | |
| ME2 | A5 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Other |
| | | | | Rehabilitation/Residential - | | |
| | | | | Long term (more than 30 | | |
| ME2 | A6 | 6/14/2018 | 11/5/2018 | days) | Adult Substance Abuse | Incarcerated |

In the above data set there are six records, five of which apply. A5 would not apply because the status at discharge is other. That is not a category included in this measure.

Individuals who are considered to have successfully completing treatment at discharge are assigned a score of 1; Individuals who are not considered to have successfully completing treatment at discharge are assigned a score of zero (0); Individuals whose status is other, not applicable or unknown at discharge are not included in the measure.

The following shows what the performance would look like using the above-mentioned data set and information.

| ME | Identifier | Final Discharge Self Help Group Attendance Frequency | Included in Measure | SCORE |
|-----|------------|--|------------------------|-------|
| ME1 | A1 | Successfully completed Treatment | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | A2 | Successfully completed Treatment | Υ | 1 |
| ME1 | А3 | Dropped out of Treatment | Υ | 0 |
| ME2 | A4 | Successfully completed Treatment | Υ | 1 |
| ME2 | A5 | Other | N | |
| ME2 | A6 | Incarcerated | Υ | 0 |

Totals - Within the ME and State

| Location | Data Set Size | Performance |
|----------|------------------|-------------|
| ME1 | 3 | 67% |
| ME2 | 2 | 50% |
| STATE | 5 | 60% |

State Hospital Readmissions

Criteria for Admissions and Discharges

- Admissions
 - o Type is 1200.1 -Initial Admission to provider
 - o Referral Source is not 6700.16 State Mental Health Treatment Facility
- Discharges
 - Type is 5500.2 Final discharge From Provider
 - Discharge Reason is not
 - 5600.14 Transferred to another treatment program or facility but individual is no show or transfer not successfully completed
 - 5600.24 Successfully completed Transfer to another treatment program or facility that is not in the SSA or SMHA reporting system
 - 5600.4 Successfully completed Transfer to another treatment program or facility
 - 5600.6 Death

Persons Admitted to a Civil State Mental Health Facility within 180 Days of Discharge

- Numerator distinct count of persons admitted to a State Mental Health Treatment
 Facility where
- Competency Status at Admission is
 - 5200.1 The individual is not under the jurisdiction of the court and is not involved in criminal justice system

AND

- Legal Status at Admission is one of the following:
 - 4900.1 Voluntary-self
 - 4900.3 Involuntary-Civil

OR

- Competency Status at Admission is one of the following:
 - 5200.2 The individual is deemed by the court to be competent to proceed in criminal offenses and is not adjudicated "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity"
 - 5200.3 The individual is adjudicated by the court as incompetent to proceed (ITP) at a material stage of a criminal proceeding
 - 5200.4 The individual is adjudicated by the court as "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity" on criminal charges

AND

- Legal Status at Admission is
 - o 4900.4 Involuntary Criminal

AND

 had been discharged (non-transfer) from a Civil State Mental Health Facility within the prior 180 days where

- Competency Status at Discharge is
 - 5200.1 The individual is not under the jurisdiction of the court and is not involved in criminal justice system

AND

- Legal Status at Discharge is one of the following:
 - 4900.1 Voluntary-self
 - 4900.3 Involuntary-Civil
- Denominator distinct count of persons discharged from a Civil State Mental Health
 Treatment Facility where
- Competency Status at Discharge is
 - 5200.1 The individual is not under the jurisdiction of the court and is not involved in criminal justice system

AND

- Legal Status at Discharge is one of the following:
 - 4900.1 Voluntary-self
 - 4900.3 Involuntary-Civil

AND

Discharge date is 180 days prior to the reporting period.

Persons Admitted to a Forensic State Mental Health Facility within 180 Days of Discharge

- Numerator distinct count of persons admitted to a Forensic State Mental Health
 Treatment Facility where
- Competency Status at Admission is one of the following:
 - 5200.2 The individual is deemed by the court to be competent to proceed in criminal offenses and is not adjudicated "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity"
 - 5200.3 The individual is adjudicated by the court as incompetent to proceed
 (ITP) at a material stage of a criminal proceeding
 - 5200.4 The individual is adjudicated by the court as "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity" on criminal charges

AND

- Legal Status at Admission is
 - 4900.4 Involuntary Criminal

AND

- had been discharged (non-transfer) from a Forensic State Mental Health Facility within the prior 180 days where
- Competency Status at Discharge is one of the following:
 - 5200.2 The individual is deemed by the court to be competent to proceed in criminal offenses and is not adjudicated "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity"
 - 5200.3 The individual is adjudicated by the court as incompetent to proceed
 (ITP) at a material stage of a criminal proceeding
 - 5200.4 The individual is adjudicated by the court as "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity" on criminal charges

AND

- Legal Status at Discharge is
 - 4900.4 Involuntary Criminal
- Denominator distinct count of persons discharged from a Forensic State Mental Health
 Treatment Facility where
- o Competency Status at Discharge is one of the following:
 - 5200.2 The individual is deemed by the court to be competent to proceed in criminal offenses and is not adjudicated "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity"
 - 5200.3 The individual is adjudicated by the court as incompetent to proceed
 (ITP) at a material stage of a criminal proceeding
 - 5200.4 The individual is adjudicated by the court as "Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity" on criminal charges

AND

Legal Status at Discharge is one f the following:

- 4900.4 Involuntary Criminal
- 4900.3 Involuntary-Civil AND
- o Discharge date is 180 days prior to the reporting period.

Measure Example – State Hospital Readmissions within 180 Days



In the above example, the reporting period is for July 2018. To capture the individuals that had a readmission in July we would pull all the discharges that occurred 180 days prior to the end of the reporting Period. In this example there are 3 individuals (A, B, C) who were Discharged in January 2018. Of those 3 individuals 2 were readmitted within 180 Days (A, B).

The Denominator is the number of Discharges (3) and numerator the number of those discharges with a Readmission within 180 Days (2).

Performance for this measure at the State level would be 67% for July 2018.

4/19/2019 Guidance Document 24 **21** | P a g e